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COMMISSION OF UJJAIN (1963) lNQUJRY. 

REPORT 

'ln exercise of tile powers conferred by section 3 of the Commission of 
Inquiry Art, 1962 (LX of 1952), U>e Govermneilt of.Maunya !'radesh, mdc Home 
Department ('X' Section), Notification N~. 949-IMg-I-X-6~ •. dated, .!lhopal, 
the 29th March 1963, were pleased to appmnt a Comnuss1on of Jnauirv with 
we as a single member' to-

"enquire into and report on the causes of the death of Govindsingh 
wn of Bhimsingh ChandravJ!t of Ujjjain." 

The order was received by me on the 31st March 1963. 

2. Procedure.-Accordingly, I issued a communique, dated the 17tli' April 
1963 calling upon the persons or bod1~ of persons imercsted in the enquiry 
to file U>eir written statements containil;tg, facts relevant to the enquiry wiU> 
affidavits in support thereof and list of documents~ witnesses, etc., in the 
manner pr~ibed within rwo weeks of the publication of the same in the 
"Madhya Pradesh Rajpatra". People desirous of giving evidence were also 
directed thereby to submit a brief memorandum of the facts on which they 
desired -to giwe evit!Pnce ill the pre~ed manner. The Distri~t Authorities, 
~e .. -the District Magistrate and the Superinlendent of Police, Ujjain, were also 
required w file such written statements, etc. The ~ommunique was p(lblls[ied 
in the "Madhya Pradesh Rajpatra" (Extraordinary), dated tlJe ~8th April 1963 
and also in the local newspapers. Throughou~ the City wide publicity was 
given to it, 

8· Parties.-!n pursuance of this communiqu~. the. following persons filed 
their written statements, etc .. on the 2nd May 1963, wh1ch was the last day for 
filing them :-

(t) District Authorities (District Magistrate a-nd ·Super-i-nttndent of 
Police, Ujjain). 

(i<) Sbri .<;;. v. Nll-ik, AdvQQt'e, l'r~sident, Bhartiya ].an Sangh, Ujjain. 

(3) Doctor Hariram Chaubev, President, Nagrik Samiti, Ujjain. 

4· No list of witnesses as required by the communique was, however, filed by 
Doctor Hariram Chaubey of the Nagrik Samiti. He, however, filed affidavits 
of. Mansingh Rahi and Mangalsingh alleging intimidation of the witnesses by 
·the police. Shri Narendra Kumar Jain of the Vidyarthi Samiti. Ujjain filed 
an objection to the -procedure .of the Commission as sHlletl -in -J:h~ ro-mnH!!lirpte 
without filing a written .~tatement. 

5· The Distrkt A11tlwritics in ,tei'111S of clauses 7 of the communique 
sought permission to be !represented bv Shris K. A. Chit~le and lialwnntsingh 
Johar, Advocates of Indore. Dr. Hariram Cha•1hev apphed for permission to 
be represented by Shri Devi Prasad Bhargav", an Advocate of Indore and 
three local Advocates Shris Kailash Prasad BO,argava, Mahendra Bhatnagar 
and Raiendra Kumar lain. 
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6. On this very day (2·5·63), these_ persons who had filed the written state-
ments w "nf d that the prehmmary heanng of the Comm1ss1on will 

,ere1orme 6"h 
begin at 10 on the 4 th May 19 3 .m all No. 49 (first floor) of the Poly-
technic Coli noonu·. in. This was eons1dered to be an ideal place with a 

ege, lla · the Koth" P I th ;gacious hall and situated close to I a ace w'here all e cgurts and 
OSt of the offices are located. 

7· Background. -To help.· appreciate the. circumstances Jead1rtg ro the 
appointment of this commission, 1t lS necessary to state in brief the ba"!'!Vound 
and the events which preceded the unfortunate event of the death of. th1s young 
boy Govindsingh on the 26th March 1963 (corresponding to Gud1-Padwa or 
Hindu New Year!s Dav 

. ' 
. . 8. The City of Ujjain is a very old city. Ever since the dawn of history, 
1t 1s sanctified because of the presenc~ of Lord Mahakal. Its glory was known 
the world over. The great poet ·Kahdasa sang of it as a portiOn of heaven on 
earth: 

~ .,;fif<rm<'fr f<i•rr.rr<r 
~ml ~f~ ffirrvrt 1ft 'T(!T.rt 
Iff~ ~ii·; f'r-l ~: 'litfu>r~'l: 

>i~<r (~<fer:) 

9 "Y"ith the _passage of time, ho~~ver. much or perhaps all c;>f its an~ient 
glory vaniShed. But the ancient traditions of festivals and revelnes a~socutted 
with them still linger. The city tenaciously preserves them. The festivals are 
celebrated with great pomp and show. 

10. .~he 'Spring festival" o_r ~Holi, is celebrated here with mOl"e thall the 
,Jsua~, ~prrtt of merriment. Tbe revelries begin from the day next on Which 
Holz IS burnt and continue for about two weeks. Each night, a h~ge proces­

sion locally know~ ~ 'Gair, is taken ·out ~om a ward of th~ ci~ wllh J~T<>ups 
of A:kha?as brandtsh1ng their anns and displaying their s"-tll _rn theu use, 
)eadtn~ 1t through the various parts of the City, exhibiting different SCenes 
(Jhankzs) 0!1 the way. The processionists are in high spirits-as they move about 
and there IS every likelihood of breach of peace on the slightest pr~text which 
compels the pohce to take adequate precautions. · Such a process10n usually 
goes to the centre of the city known as Chhatri Chauk and it is only late at 

0 ;ght that it disperses. 

~!· -~·he .. 'Gair . of Abdalpura Ward, a locality m the jurisdiction of 
Ji"'apga.nJ Pollee StatiOn, was taken out in the night of the t4tli March 1963. 
'l""be StatiOn Officer Munshilal Shrivastava was with it with a small posse of 
constables to see that it passed peacefully. Late at night at about t, when he 
c~:ro.e hack to the Station House after the dispersal of the· 'Gair' procession he 
apprehended that Mangalsingh and his associates of whom the deceased was 
0 pe .. and who had earlier that night assaulted some pe'rsons afld hri.Cr attempted 
to loll Kam~l Pan-wala, mig-ht commit some serious offence. So, he deeded 
to arrest them to Prevent furthef mischief. 

AccordintTtV h . ·· . • e went 
ID Urdupura u·· . • nam. 

to the house or M ang-:tlsingh, who Js also (i..fled 
Mangal was traced inside hut he did not' open 
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the doors. So attempts were made to secure his arrest by approaching the 
house frOm the backside. Two constables posted there saw the door. open and 
Mangalsingh peep out .of it. But just then, seeing the police constables, he closed 
the door and hid himself inside. The deceased Govindsingh who happened to 
be with him, however, rari out and hid himself to the latrine. He was caught 
there and persuaded to ca)J out Mangalsingh. He also came out and both of 
them were marched to the Jiwajiganj Police Station where their formal arrest­
memos were drawn and they were locked. 

13. The next rooming, the deceased Govindsingh, who was th~h appear­
ing privately in the final High School Examination as a private candidate, was 
enlarged on bail furnished by him with Ganpatlal as surety._ Mangal was 
produced before a mae;istrate and taken in judicial custody and sent to jail. 

14. In the afternoon of 26th March 1963, Raghuvirsfngh Patwaii, the 
brother of the deceased with whom he was living in Nayapura, Ujjain lodged a 
report with the Station Officer, Jiwajiganj that the deceased had committed 
suicide by hanging. The Station Officer went to the house, saw the body and_ 
after taking its photographs through a photographer ·held an inquest in which 
no marks of violence except the ligature on the neck were found. A Jetter 
(Ex. D) purporting to be in the hand of the deceased stating that he was com­
miting suicide of his own free-will found in the same room on the upper storey 
of the house was taken by the police in their possession. The body was then 
sent to doctor Bobra of the Civil Hospital for postmortem examination. After 
autopsy, he rei:umed· it to the relatives of the deceased. The brother brought 
it back to his house and preparations fur his funeral were made. 

15. But .In the _meanwhile, a rumour ·spread in the city that ln>vmosmgh 
died on account of severe be>~tings given to him by the police. Some of the 
leaders namely Shri K. P. BharJl'ava, Advocate, Mahendra Bhatnagar, Advocate. 
Doctor Hariram Chaubey, and others collected at his house with a group of 
their -followers and inflamed the popular passions bv cha!Wng the police with 
severe beatings to the boy resulting in his death. The situation soon showed 
signs of deterioration and the District Authorities n1shed to the spot to restore 
calm. To pacifv the leaders of the mob which had bv then sweiTed consider­
ablv. the District Magistrate sug-gested a re.examination of the dead borlv bv 
the Civil Surgeon and one doctor to be named bv them. ·Thev su~g-~sted the 
name of Doctor Kelkar who was_accordintdy called. The Civil Surgeon. and 
doct<>r Kelkar 'both examined the dead bodv in the presence of th~se leaders 
and thev found on it the lie;ature mark and 2 s•:nall contusions. After this was 
done, the body was handed over to the relations and cremated. 

t6. The matter, howeve:r. was .not allowed to rest there. Tt ano~~rs to 
have been raised in the Leeidative Assemblv then in session anrl the Govern. 
ment appointed this Commission for the above enquirv 

17. Preliminarv Hearinf!,.----A brief resume of the preliminary hearing~ o[ 
.the commission become.:; necessarv at this stage. 

(i) 4th May 1<)6~.-The sittine: was ·held in the I-, all of Polvtechnic Colle~te 
Be1ldes, the persons w'ho had filed written statements on the 2nd May 196~ and 
their counsel, a larg-e number of Advocate5:, representatives of the press 3.nd th 
public were also. present. The Iearne~ Advocate General Shri M. Ailhil::a ~ 
who had be~n requested to assist the Commis.ion. wa, also there After th1

' 

aim•. and f?b]ect~ Qf the commission were. explained bv me. Shri M Bhatn e · , agar 
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filed an a . . behalf of Dr. Chaubey of the Nagril<. samiti- for starting 
the _sittinfp~tcauon o~ enable Shri Devipr~shad Bhargava. Advocate of Indore 
to attend t~ i P·~· o This prayer was rejected. A question arose about per­
mission heine earl;~· to Sbris J{. P: Bhargav~ and M. Bhatnagar, Advocates, to 
represent Drg fra~ e ChaubeV of the Nagnk Samiti when they were cited as 
wttnesse5 by ·Shr~rg~~- Naik- 'These Ad_vocates gave an undertaki~g that they 
wo~ld not use· ersonal knowledge reg~rdtn~ the ma_tter under en<Ju•ry for crosS­
examinatiOn ofp witneSses. so the finding g.tve~ agamst them earher was revised 
and permission as prayed accorded. ApphcattOns were made by the Jansangh 
a_nd the Nagrik Samiti for change of venue o_n the ground that it :was not acces­
stble to all being rather distant from the Ctty. The consideration of these 
prayers was reserved till the pla~es. s~ggc:;ted by t_hem were inspectec_l. They 
a_lso made applications alleging tnUmtdatt.on ?f Wlt~esses by the poltce. But 
Sl,!lC"e the allegations were vague a!'ld wantm~ •n parttc~lars the_y were asked ~0 
gtve a~davits with necessary paruculars w_htch they dtd not gtve at all.. The 
affidavits filed by the Superintendent, i'ohce, Doctor Chaubey and Shn Naik 
were not properly verified. They were, therefore, asked to file properly verified 
affidavits for which time was given.. Narendra Kumar of the Vidyar~hi. Samiti 
was he~rd on his application objectm_g to the proccd~re of the Commt~SJo_n and 
th_e obJection was over-ruled. He dtd n~t. file a "'!ltten statement Wtthm the 
sttpula:ed time. so his prayer for permtttmg certatn lawyers to represent him 
was_ re,ected summarily. 

(ii) gth May 1 ~63.-(a) This sitting_ was also largely ·attenaed by the public 
and the pre~s besides of course the parues who h~d filed written statements and. 
the~r ~awyers. An application wa~ made by Shrt Gadgi!.. Se<;<etary o~ the 
S~taltst Party for permitting certam Advocates ~o :'-Ppear for h.'m·. ~ut tt was 
reJected as the written statement was not filed wtthm the prescnbeil ttme. The 
District Authorities made an application to hold the sittin&' in c:u;nera and 
further to_gtVe certain directions to the Adyocates of the N~grtk Sa'." ttl to make. 
a de~lar~tton that they were not irt possessiOn of any matertal as Witnesses. An 
appl_u;atton was filed by Shri Bhatnagar for Doctor Chaubey _of . the. Nagrik 
Sam~u to change the venue and further to stop ~aste ot publtc money by per­
nutung_ the Government Advocate Shtl B~lwantsmgh Johar to appear for the 
Aut~o~tttes. On the same groUnd exceptton was taken to the Commission 
reqturmg tht. help of the Advotatt General. Other matters such ~s- inthnida~ 
t ion of the Witnesses- bv the police, etc., were also pressed in it. A gi:tevance was 
aJo;o made o.f not ~tartmg the sitting· at .11- p.m-. on t~e 1tlt M~ty 1963 .. to· acc0111. 
mod~te Shn Dev.'prashad Bhargava. All these objections were d:ctded after 
]1eanng the parttes. The consideration of venue was left open tdi the halls 
suggested by them were seen. 

(b). It may be pointed out here that on this dale only the Superintendent 
police filed .• properly verified affidavit .. The other parties; viz., D.r. Chaubr,: 
of the Nagnk Samiti and Shri Naik of thP Jan Sangh did not ·fik them. 

(c) A prayer was made for inspection of docu·ments of the other. parties. 
'!hiS was allowed subject to the condition that they file proper aflid~vlts. Dr. 
Chaub~Y. chd not file list 6{ ·witnesses althoi.lgh time was givet1 tO -~·tm earlier. 
;rhe s1ttmg was, therefore, adjourned wirhout transacting much blls1ness to th~ 
t4th MaY tg63. 

(iii) 11th May tg63,~(a) As agreed, 'I inspected the halls of the Madhav 
coJI~ge, Gtqarati 'Samaj, MunicipalitV and !'1aharajwada High School in .the 
evening ?f the toth Mav tg63 with the Supermtendent of Police, Shri BliatnaR-ar 
,.nd Sh[1 Nt''"·. ! found ·t.h;t hone of those halls was convenient _and ideally 
111ited 01 t le stttmgs of the Cmnmi.s,ioil. They were in the heart of the City 
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where in the atmosphere then prevailing it would have been difficult to hold the 
sittings in calm and peaceful atmrn;phere. So when the hearing !ltarted on ~e 
14t~ May 1963, I announced my decision of not changing th!! venue .. At th1s 
Shr1 Bhatnagar rose and began to behave in a very obstructive and rmprope1· 
manner. He wanted me to give reasons forthwith for this decision and made 
this demand in a very threatening manner. He was several times asked. t-o 
quieten himself and speak slowly but he paid no heed. I felt th:'t he mtght 
create more trouble and so I called the City Superintendent, Pollee· to stand 
near him. Seeing him, Shri. Bhatnagar took his seat. The City S_uperinten­
dent, Police was, therefore, directed to take his seat. It may be mentioned here 
that in his utterances Shri Bhatnagar charged this CommiSsion with partisan­
ship and even threatened me that I should apologise to him. However. there­
after he, Doctor Chaubey and Mansingh Rahi staged a walk-out after presentin{\' 
an application charging this Commission with misbehaving and insulting Shn 
Bhatnagar. 

(b) The behaviour of the Nagrik Samiti and its counsel Shri Bhatnagar on 
this hearing and the walk-out staged by them left me with no other option 
except to terminate the permission given to Shri Bhatnagar to represent it and 
also to terminate the right o£ the Samiti to take further part in the proceedings 
as of right. 

(c) Thereafter, only the. District Authorities and the Jan Sangh remained 
before the Commission. These parties were heard in the order in which the 
witnes!iles ·were to be examined and considering their written ·statements, it was 
ordered tllat Shri Naik, who had charged the police with beating the boy as a 
result of which he committed suicide, should lead evidence. He gave a tentative 
order in which the witnesses were to be examined. On, this dav- the applica­
tions of Shri G.adgil and Shri Ramprakash for being made parties were consi­
dered and rejected because they had not filed their written statements within 
the prescribed time. The matter of holding the sittings in camera was kept 
under consideration. The next date was fixed for evidence on the 22nd Ma.v 
1963· 

1tl. In the nteanwhilc, the Nagrik Samiti and its leaders. viz., Shri K. P. 
Bhargavao -Ittfahendra Bhatnagar and Dr. Hariram. Chaubey and others raised 
an agitation. Thev held public meetings in which all sortS Of falsehoods Were 
said and even threats were given to me. A sample of the speech of Shri Kaila'ih· 
prashad Bhargava an Advocate is· to be found in r:he ·file of speeches which is 
enclosed J:terewith. He gave an open threat of violence, not only ~at it ~as 
reported •n. t~e press that they were to stage a black·flag demonstrauom: agatnst 
the ComnusSton and •lso to burn mv effigy. I naturallv felt that a public 
sitting ?f the Commission may lead to breach of peace. Therefore, by an order 
passed '':! the morning of tne _22nd May 1963, I decided to hold the sittings in 
pri·va.te tn exercise of the powen given hv section R of the Commission ·of 
Inquiry Act. 

. 19. It was in these circumstances t~at t.he fi~st sitting for recording_ of 
evtde,n~e.took ~lace. on the und May 196~ m prtvate m the same halL Adequate 
pubhc1ty was g1ven to this order. On th1~ date while proceeding from the Kotb · 
Palace to t?e venue of the sitting, I notlced some persons holding a black-fla 1 
demonstratton and crying slogans against me. ~ 

20- Recording of evidence.-The first hearing for recordtng of evidenc 
fixed for _und ,May 1963. On this dat~, on_Iy the District Authorities an~ ~s 
J:an Sangh put 1t1 appe~rances. B';lt Shn Natk of the Jan Sangh filed an a li e 
tton (I.L.A. 22) for rev1ew of certam orderS made by me earlier -· d' PP ca-

• cgar mg ordet' 
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of witnesses to be examined, venue. making of the District Authorities as 
parties, etc .. He also prayed in it that Sub-Inspector M. L. Shrivastava. alleged 
to be responsible for the beating of the deceased, be made a party and. the 
District Authorities be deemed to be representing the State in the pr?ce~dmgs. 
It was also reiterated in it that the venue be changed and the intim1dauon of 
witnesses by police be stopped. All these matters were earlier decided and so 
-the application was rejected. It was, however, observed that the making of the 
police officials M. L. Shrivastava and others as parties would be considered if ~t 
any stage of the enquiry evidence is received requiring an enquiry into their 
conduct. The reasons are stated at length in the order-sheet, dated the· und 
May_ 1963. He also made a prayer to permit Nagrik Samiti to take part in the 
proceedin_gs. This· was also rejected. A demand for public enquiry was again 
made whtch c.ould not be granted in the circumstances. Shri Naik· there upon 
~alked-out after presenting a typed application (I.L.A. 26). The Press Reports· 
md1?tted t)t~t th1s decision of a walk.out by the Jan Sangh was known much 
earher (Damtk Bhaskar, dated the ust May 1963). After that in the absence of 
any other party except the authorities-, the work of recording of evidence began_ 

21. The actual recording of evidence was done on the following dates:­
work, rhc gap'i hcc::Oimt': in~vit:th1c. 

R5-63, 23,5-63, .2g·6j, 25·5·bj, 27-5-63, 28-5-63, 29-5-63, 30-5-63, 31·5-63, 
•s-6-63, 16-7-63, 17-7-63. 18-7-63. '9·7-63- 20-7-63, 22-7-63, 23-7-63. 
•5-7-63. tG-7-63, >7·7·63 and 1-8-63. On acqmnt of other pressing 

n. In the absence of the other parues, the Commission in discharge oE. its 
duty to find the truth had itself to examine a large number of witne&les totalling 
34 as Commission witnesses. The District Authorities examined in all '49 :wit­
'lesses. None from the public volunteered to give evidence. Their witnesses 
are described with the abbreviation (A. W.). The witnesses examined hv thP 
Commission are called (C.W.). 

2~. Written statements. -Before proceeding to the discussion of evidence, 
it is ;.ecessary to state· in brief the case of each party in relation. to the matter 
under enquiry: According to the Jan Sangh and the Nagrik Samiti, Govind 
Singh was an innocent student having no associations with Mangal and without 
any bad antecedents. The police arrested him without any c~use. Both at the 
time of the arrest and while being marched to the police station that night of 
the 24th March 1963, he was severely beaten. Even during. detention he was 
beaten ~y the police. When released t'he next mo'!'ing he was again called by 
the ·pohce. So on account of the· fear of the pohce and further beatings hy 
them, he committed suicide. The Nagrik Samiti further added that there was 
no justification even for the arrest of Mangalsingh. But Shri Ekbote. then City 
Superintendent of Police, bore a deep grudge against him and so he caused his 
arrest in his presence. Govindsingh was arrested along with him and both were 
severely beaten at the time of the arrest and also while they were taken to the 
Police station. · The beating was also ~iven in the station house ·during their 
detention i':' lock-up .. The boy Govindsingh was _terribly frightened as a remit 
of·the beatmg and when the next day be was agam called, he took ·the extrem<' 
step of ending his life on account of that fright 

24. The District Authorities on the other hand stated that .the deceased 
was a clo~r ac;sociate of a notorious· Gunda of- the Citv. viz .. ~fangahingh. He 
~ad that night.fn compam··of the deceased a~d others of like.charactor,indulgedr 
m .. 7tr:ts of rowilvi·~m during the processH)h of the ·nair!. fhey had even 
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.. Ul.r.eatcned Kamal .Pau-wala and Maugalsingh· even aiinM a PluM-sa blow at -him. 
; 'fhese reports reached tlre station ·olncer M.: L. Shrivasrava. '-'so he· -considered 
:.. it 11,c..~essa~ .. y. as a precaUtionary rueasut'e to arrest I\:langalsingh ·and· Govinds.ingh 
.. _under se~uon 1!)1 "of ilie Code of ·Crin1inal Procedure. Arter-- the incident...at 
.the shop of Kamal, for which·· he had lodged· a· 1·eport -in.unediate.Ly. :.both 
Mangalsingh ··and Govindsingh t:an awa}' and hid theffisehes.: in the; 1\ouse .. of 

·the tormer in Urdupilra. ·-The Station officer 'M. L. Shrivastava . went. th.e.rc 
>with a fe~ constables and after arresting them brought them . to the .. sta(i~m 
hou8e.Jiwajiganj where they were kept in the·lock,up .. They.were.no~.b.e.aten 
at any time, either at the time of arrest or when they were brought . to the 
station house or in the lock-up. The next morning one Ganpatlal ca'.l.le and 

. sectired. the .. release of Govindsingh on furnishing bail. Thereafter: .. GoviJ.I.d-
· .. singh was never called to the Police. · According to them, it .;1ppears 

that_ after his release, when his brother Raghuvirsingh_ came -to ~ow:of._the 
arrest at a time when he was giving his examination, he appears to haYe beaten . 
and scolded him for the disgrace brought upon himself and the family by his 
association with the notorious bad character Mangalsingh. The. boy was. then 

· appearing in his Matriculation Examination as a private candidate for the 
second tiine and had not done well in some of the papers. So it appears that 
on account of the morbid feelings and a sense o£ il'ustration, he cummittcd 

.. suicide; 

- ~5· Points for. dedsi:an.-ln view of 'the allegations .in·. the- Writ.t~ 
statements filed before the Commission, the following points ari$$! .for decision:..-

(t) Whether Govindsingh, was severely beaten by the :p~li~e· ;t-;he ti~1e 
· of his arrest, at the time when he was marched to the police station 

and in the lock-up so that he took fright and 9n account of the 
' fear of further beating by the police or harassment, he committed 
ru~ . . . 

Or 

Whether it w~s on accoun_t· of SOme ~thcr .caus~ ~~h~r than the alleged 
·beating by the police or fear .. of beatmg or harassment by 
~he police may. be a sense of .frustration,. etc., that the boy may 
have committed suicide.?_ 

REASONS FOR THE FINDINGS 

· ~6. ·.On point No. 1.-Th~ Jan Sangh and the Nagrik Sami;i both joined 
in the al~egations of atrocities .<gainst. the. police and in particular against 

· M. L, Shr1vastava, Station Officer, Jtwapganl- They alleged· that he had no 
justificat!on, whatsoever, for arrestin~ Mangalsingh and Govindsingh that night. 
But havmg done that, he beat Govmd smgh so severely that the boy was fri­
ghtened· and when he was again called t? the ·Police, out of sheer fright of 

·further visitations of harassment and beatmgs, ·he brought -about· his own end 
·by hanging. ·The Nagrik Samiti has gon~ a step further and has implicated 
Shri Ekbote. then City Superintendent, ~ohce, ~!so in being present at the time 
of the. arrest and being instrumental m be~tmg Mangalsingh and arresting 
hilll. . . .. _. .. . - . . . 

" · 27. But after having made this charge, both kel't away from th 
Commission on the very minor issue of venue. Perhaps it was their de - e 
h h · · f h C · - · ne I · h · Sire to ave t e stttmgs o t e ommtsston m sm P ace 111 t e cit) where they could 
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~tch lll,OI'e of public atL~nti~n by their exhibitiou.s which tlu:y gaH! before the 
CGWllll.iss10n. ~ h'=: selecuon of the -venue£ is primarily the <.'Oitcent ot the Com~ 
misswn. The place must be sl!ch where the sacred task of ·finding the truth 
is earned on in an atmosphere of absolute calm and peace; A place in a 
aowdcd locality is hardly suited for such work. The reason is such evenls 
usnally arouse public feelings when they are, as it usually happens, exploited 
by people with little or no sense of responsibility. The place was atler all 
not more distant from the city then the Kothi Palace the seat of all principal 
courts and offices._ Arrangements were made wilh the Maqhya Bharat Road­
ways to ply their city buses through this place on the ilays of the Commission's 
sittings. That should normally have saushed people who were- really anxious 
in helping the Commission to unravel the truth. But it did not satisfy the 
leaders of Nagrik Samiti. The significant thing is that not one man of the 
public in gene,ral ever complained of Lhe unsuitability of the venu" on grounds 
of conv.enience, etc. Even so, the matter under enquiry was of far greater 
importance than the matter of venue and one would normally, rtlerefore, el<pect 
that people really and in truth anxious to help in finding truth ·out would not 
haW! so unceremoniously walk;ed-out as the Nagrik Samiti did. The first 
prayer of the Nagrik Samiti made on Lhe first qay of the sittings of the 
Commission by its Advocate and member Shri M. Bhamagar gives a clue to 
their attitude. A prayer so unreasonable as that of holding the sitti11gs at 
5 o'clock in the evening is unh.eard of in the halls of any tribunal. Not only 
that, this prayer being disallowed, it was further made as a sort. of accusation 
against the C<Qllmission in another application filed by the same Advocate on 
the gth May 1963. 

28. The Jan Sangh also quietly walk~d-out in circumstances already 
mentioned in paragraph 20 and detailed in •order-sheet, d~ted ·the und May 
1963. The result was that in this manner both these princip~l parties, t_he only 
two bodies filing written statements from this big city wtth il population of 
nearly J lakhs and various political and social groups, contnved to keep away. 

2g. Not only that, the leaders of the Nagrik Samiti who appear to have 
championed this cause, besides publicly maligning me, and threatening me with 
violence, did not respond to the summonses to appear before the Commission 
and state the truth which they had "tO say. Shri Bhatnagar, Advocate repudiated 
all knowledge of_ material facts in his tel~m, dated ~~e 23<d May 1963, when 
he was served wnh a summons by admtttmg openly Sales (Self) not material 
witness to any indd~~"- And, ~actor. Chaubey and _Rajendra Kumar Jain 
another A? vocate, declmed to grve evtde!'ce . voluntanly protesting amongst 
others agamst the form of summonses whtch ts gener:tlly used in. civtl- courts 
(I. L. A. 25 and 26). I need not comment more at this ·stage at the conduct .of 
these two persons alleged to be connected with a body called dtizens' -committee 
or N agrik Samiti. It sppks for itself. 

30. In this state of affairs and in these ctrcumstances th-e Commission itSelf 
had to summon a large number of persons alleged to be acquainted ·with the 
facts or who might be in the know of relevant facts to rome and. <giVe. ,erideo_ ce 
before it. 

31. The justification for the arrest of the deceased was maoe an tssue_ and 
therefore, it is necessary to consider evidence bearing upon it because th~ 
'8ubseque~t kappeniogs are in .a way cOlilnected with it. At the -relev:ant time the 
~y £ovmdsinglt -wa~_l!ving: with hi_s br_Glhe_r R"'l·huvit:s~gh {C .. W. -~). who 
1S a Patwar1 <>f the UJJam· Ct.tv and bves Ill h;s· own house ·rn N.amdamura. ·He 
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was preparing privately for his Matriculation but had unfortunately developed 
a great friendship with Mangalsingh (C. W. ~~). 

31. Mangalsingh on his own admission is a notorious bad character of 
the city. He was concerned with very serious offence: .such as murder and 
attenipt to commit murder. Witnesses after :witnesses have testified to his 
dangerous proclivities which have compelled the police to keep a strict watch 
on him. Bapulal (A. W. 3), Shankarlal (A. W. 13), Badrilal (A'. W. · 14), Sher­
khan (A. W. 20), Govind ·(A. W. ~4), Ahniadnoor (A. W. ~5), Ramsingh (A. _w. 
~6), Haji lbnthtmkhan (A. W. ~7), Nageshwar (A. W. 35); Pratapsingh (A. W. 
36), Shivnathsingh (A. W. 37), and Kamal (A. W. u). all know Mangalsingh as 
a dangerous bad character or Gunda of the City whose only source of livelihood 
has been moving about in the city and extracting money from others by force 
or show of force. T!'e police had entered. his name ~ the Gunda re15iste• 
(E.x. 1). Mst. Chunmbat (C. W. 15). who IS a close netghbom of Mangahmgh, 
has also stated that the Police is always visiting Mangalsingh. Other witnesses 
Parashram (C. W. t8) and Nathugir (C. W. tg), close neighbours for obvious 
reasons declmed to say anything against Mangalsingh on the pretext that they 
do not know anything about him. It is apparent that on account of the fear 
o£- Mangalsingh they do not want to disclose the truth. llut Nathugir (C. W. 
19). Mangilal (C. W. ~o) and Laxmanrao (C.W. u), other neighbours do say 
that his character is bad. Thus they give ample support to the evidence of 
Narsinghrao Jadhav (A. W. 30) Shankarrao Roman. {A. W: 31), Brajrajsingh 
(A. W. 38), Ctrcle Inspector Wakde (A. W. 39). Munshtlal Shnvastava (A. W. 41) 
and City Sperintendent Narayanrao Ekbote· (C. W. 34), Police Officers who know 
a great deal about this bad character Mangalsingh. 

33· The associations of this boy Govindsingh with Mangalsingh were 
iong· imd strong also. Both always moved about in the city usually drunk and 
troubled people. According to Kamla (A. W. u) •. besides Govindsingh, Chatar. 
Vidrohi, son of doctor Hariram Chaubey,. Pr~st~ent of the Nagrik Samiti, 
Hari, Trambak, Ramesh and others all boys wtthm therr teens were tne cons­
tant companions of Mangalsingh. Shankarlal (A. W. 13), Rajendrakumar Jain 
(A. W. HJ), Sherkhan (A. W. !O), Govind (A. W. ~4), Ramsingh (A. W. 26), 
Haji Ibrallimkhan (A. W. ~7)• all have testified t? the long and thick association 
of this boy with Mangalsingh. So does Pratapsmgh (A. W. g6), a student who 
knew the deceased verv well. Shivnathsingh (A. W, 37), a relation of the deceas­
ed always saw the two together, and even complained to his mother about this 
unhol¥. friendship. This evidence, sufficiently .supports the evidence of police 
constable Brajrajsingh (A. W. 38) and Sub-Inspector Jankilal (A. W. •g), who 
was formerly Station 'Officer of Jiwajiganj. I may here say that all the witnesses 
except police officers were questioned in the very beginmng whether they were 
under any influence md all of them have pledged their oath to say that no 
influence of any sort was brought to bear upon them by any one. Therefore 
there is no reason to disbelieve them. 

34· It is true that Raghuvirsingh (A. W. 12) and Abhaysingh (A. W. 5). 
the brother and the uncle, respectively, of the deceased, have denied any know­
ledge of the deceased being in the coml;'ony of Mangalsingh and Mangalsingh 
being a bad _character. But Raghuvirsmgh had to admit that once in tgtlt 
his· brother and Mangalsingh were jointly proseooted for some assault on a 
police constable on duty (paras: 35 and 36). H~ s~ys that it was in respect of an 
offence of ·two persons ridmg a birvde. 'But this IS not true as the certified true 
copy of the challan would show . 

. 35 l!'e fact is. clincbe~ by .the fact admitted h) Mangalsingh as well as 
Raghuvmmgh rhat In the n·tgbt of .the ~4th March '1963 the deceased slept in 



to 
the house of lvlangalSlngn although l)e naa· t'o appear in an e~ination -ou 
these d;lys. Unless there is great fril!ndsll.ip• llet'ween the tWo; llhi~ would· not 
happen. This. is enoagh to show that there was great friend&hlp between 
Mangalsingh. and the deceased and' as. the witnesses· have stated thi!Y were al·ways 
found- moving together. 

36. It is in the background of tllis· history of Mangalsingh and' his• fl:ie~td~ 
ship with the deaeased that the evid'ence of cirqu:nsrances that' led to hi& arres~ 
have. t<> J:>e e~ammed According, m me ev.iclerrce on-. record', bo~h' M'an_ga;Jsing<h 
~d Govmdsmgh along with other ass6Ci'ares of tWe forme~; ihd'U.fgecl 1rt; ma)'ly 
mCidents that night of the 211th .March 196]! Shankarlll!l (A. W. t·3) andl B'adn­
lal (A .. W.. 14) have deposed about. an incident of th'a1! very· nigh1:.- 'Fhl!)' _say 
tha~ at a~out ~-30 P·~- or so when the 'G"air' of Abda:lpura· reache~· the Kha!ur: 
~ali Maspd,_ Ma?galsmgh dealt a btow of his Dhariya on Badnlal. C!;ovmd­
smgh was wtth· hun.. Fortunatelv. it d1d not strike Bad'rilal from- the- sharp end. 
But ~adr~lal adequately punished him and then lodged' a report in sta-tion' ll.ouse, 
_fiwapganJ. 

37' Further, Man gal is. also alleged to have picked· up a: fight witlt _Mohan 
~ycle-wala as Rajendrak.umar Jain deposed. Earlier that very- evemng he 
picked up a quarrel with Nageshwar (A W.. 35) as- deposed by Nageshwar and 
She•khan (A. W. ""')- Not orW,. that :rt ab<>ut 8· or 9 p:m these· perso~~ ca'.""' 
t01 til.¢ \i.qu<>" ~hop o~ K.rap:u:am. (~ W. ~ L) and J;>ix:IGed 'up :r quarr~I· WHh' hun 
as stated by h':"' and A:hmadnoor (A. W. 35)'. G'ovm.a~mgo was w1th- Mangal­
smgh at that ume. 

38. The last incident it. thalt cf a~ attack by, Mangrusmg]). <>n Kamal 
(A. W. u), by a Phar.sa in, respe<:t of w'!>ici), he lodge<\ :t report (EX. Y).. In the. 
rel)ort, however· mer"' n. no mentiol'l! ofi" M>e lil<>me- of Govindsingh hut. Kamal' ba~ 
deposeq on oaur. tl!tal: Govindsingh. was, also w.ith Mangalsingb at. the time of 
incident. Sub-Inspector, Shankarrao lt<>maJ> (A,, W. 3 L), whom the matter was 
reported at once- while he was <>n duty. near the scene in, Ghatri Chauk.. says that 
he had seen Govind~ingl. along with: othePS with. ·1)1angalsingh. Sc the £aci is 
that at the relevanr time that these iruzidems wera aommitted by Mang;th;ingh; 
Govindsingh was presen 1 wlll~ li.inL 

39,, It has come; in ~e ~id'etrce <1f these witnesses ao• alSo of the P<>lice 
wnstable oR dury,.·ti!Z.,. ArJunsmgh (A.W. 11~ Shanl<a:rr~o ~an (A.W. S·•)• 
Nageshwar (A. W. 35), BrajraWngh (A. W. 38) and Sub-hlspectO!' Munshilal 
Shrivastava (A.W. 41) that in that procession· of' 'Gair!· Mangatsingh and his 
associates such _as Go~indsingh. and others carried'_ formidable· V.eaponr. lib 
Pharsa, Lohang<, etc. 1 hey were all dru.nlt and mus~ naturally be so whe:,~~!l 
had punh~~cd liquor from the 111/Jflof Kraparant (1\,l'f, aQ. 11: 10 M•t il! . , .. 
w ~ ~ut11 flHtpil' tli#VIfl~ a!J!mt drnnl! m ~ l'ft!Wtt 

4<J. l'lt,-ef!>fe, whm; itt tho.t '"''~ night _~galslngh had i~ th~ company 
ot ills assodald indulged 1n ~uch acts ~f ~wdy1Mll- th~·~atezucd. or actual there was 
every reasdll· to appt>ehend furnher nuS<;htef ftom th13 gan". It· is significan.to. t~ 
note here that they even came and threatened Shankarlal-that night at about u 
for the only reason it seemB ~at he witnesse<!> Man&al's attaclo. on, Badrilal 
(Jir..W. , 4). There is· also the evtde!'ce of Munsh1la~, Sbr.wastava (A. w. +t). tQ- the 
effect that _these people we~e ?'eatmg lhsturbance- m the AkJum<M by· intruding 
in them Without the permiSsiOn of the l(stad. All_ these events in the back­
ground of the previous history of Mangalsu~gh and, h1~ assO<;iations. with Govind 
Singh and others led Sub-Inspector Munshdal Sh~wastava tu· app'pehend that If 
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they are not 1ll'reot«<, ilihey .would ll'"""* further .'l"ischkf. .Aqd .tl).at appear~ 
tl> be dre -reasofl -as st3;lled .im ,R,ojnamcl>a .&lll<l .No. 1'~59• .date\! ~Jf"-3·6)!./~5'3·63 
"Eli. K. -~) ior •&his officer to .auest &!lese ~1'!0 perrons. .It appeats that. on' account 
Of ;the ur$ency 111he ldfficer .at .10nce .:star.ted ,fqr ;the ..arrest without first .me~tion~ug 
his .deparrure .and its .z.easoas ~n •he ~al. .diary The .reasous ,should :hav.e 
.been given in me .at:Vi..al .r6pallt. 

41. In the circumstances mentioned above, such an apprehensio~ ~as 
justified. And, therefore, his action in arresting them cannot be criticised ·as 
being without any Justification._ He was aft~ .-U .made -awar<; .of all ,these 
:incidents and 'krrowmg as ·he ·dtd -the .bad character of :Mangal.smgh ani! .the 
~cnvities ·of this 11nd 'his -asaocia.tes, J:here was .sufficient •gtJ>Und for .hi,m to appre­
hend that these people may commit .a cognizable offence ,·!of allowed ·t<> .z-emain 
at 'large; ·It •is to 'be :riDt-ed that :a irew days Jllefore Holi, Mangalsingh was ordered 
to -give 'security 'for ·his .good .oohaviour, .a Ifact which ·.he himself :admits (C. -W. 
u-para. ~3)-

~- 'It ·was in these oircumstanc-es >that this ll'olioe Officer along 'With _cons­
"ta:bles 'Gulabrao '('A.W. ·g), Brajrajsing\1 (A.W. ~8) . .Avj.unsingh (A.W .. u) .came .t!' 
arrest Mangalsingh. This 'fact os not-ed in the Rojnamcha .Sana •No. d~MJ .(Ex. 
X. 2 ). The constables :above-aamed support •each ether 'on :!!his .point. 

43· Th~y have also deposed how, when lh~y ;reached 'i'n from -of Manga4's 
house that mght at about 12.30 or so, Mangalsmgh was called and he did not 
open the door.· ·So two ·of them w-ent ta -the ibadloside--to <k.eep " .watch because 
it. was noti~ed that the Iamp burning insid-e had been extinguished whiclt mg­
:gested the presence ol Mangalsingh in _the house. They hav~ -also !Stated Jthat 
Arjunsingh and '(;ulabrao wha were on the . ·backsid-e .naticed Mangalsingh 
'!pening the door _·on the ·backside perhaps ~n oan <at'templ <a make goad his 
escape. But just ~hen .these t:wo constables ·tteld the i!loo'r w.ith the Jresult that 
M:angalslqgh ran inside and ·shut the ..:Ioor .!If _the other raom 1ns'ide whith he 
o~upied. }n ~e tpeanw~ile ~r>~j_rajsing:h _and !>funsh!lal came _oo th~ back­
,S.1tie. ,.ey !faw dns ·boy Govmdstngh titdmg:--htmselif -m the ·lattme whloh ~s to 
l,he south'o£ the roOI1l·otcupied ·by MangalsmR'b -as the plat;~ ·(Ex. ·H-t} shows. 
The}' caught him and then he was asked tot:> <:all out Mangalsmgh ·because there 
was now_i10 escape;for bim. Mangalsingh accon:lingly c,ame out apdtbey call,"ht 
'l)im.- The :four police oflica-s all agree on these points. Even Mangal.singh 
·admits th·ese ·circ'umstances to. be 'true though 'he says_ -that th-e door was pushed 
by lhe pohce {C. W. ~2-paras. ·5 and 6). The plan ttseFf .would show that it is 
the· third· room 'from !'he south \vbich was ·in <>ccuoatioo ·of Mangalsingb. 

M· :mil QU~!!I!ln now I~ W!J[lhtl lho doo~··~d OvviuJoiuJib .wa• l,oool"!llll 
rl>M tom~ •lrmewrtl:t Manp;•lsm)l'h. Only Monplsny.,-h says thnt .at the time of 
fil.l __ iitt'o.;t,. tloc l'q!ite 'beat ·h lttt itl!il Grwindsinfih with th~it· k~t ntld ftm (.\. W. 
u-para. 7)- Parashram atlas Pmumal (C. ·w. ,tll), .;t .close neighllour living in 
the same house in which Mangal lives. was in Uj.iain in his houSe on that flight 
of.24th _Marc.h 1963. ~e does not say'_of a.'1Y, incident of beating. If there was 
beatmg, surely Mangalsing'h and Gov~ndsmgh, would . have cried: J:'hei.r .cries 
would p~turally h~ve been heard by .htm. Lal<manrao J agtap (C.W. ~ i) wh -
house~· JUst oppostte to the house of Mangalsingh and who wokie up on h ?Se 
lre nh. m~e says that he ,did not hear any Pois.e 0£ .beating t;lr crying cami e%mg 
cue o_use of Ma~ga~smgh. if there Wl!S suct> \Jeating or .c in he · · ng om 
be~rd tt. Chunmbat <c:.w. ,5,) also says n?thing ,about it.~hot h sho~ld .have 
neoghbour. Ano!lter. netghbour )l;{angilal d•d Jiot hear an h. g ,she lS .also a 
- • . . . Y. sue nmse of marpit. 
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Chandarsingh (C.W. 15) is anol'her neighbour of ~an~alsingh who actually sup­
plied the lock put on the house after he and _Govmdsmgh :were marched to_ the 
police station. He says that he did not see etther Govmdsmg'h or Mangalsmgh 
crying after l'he arrest and they did not complain to hi'!' that they were beaten. 
All these witnesses are dose neigh hours and Chandarsmgh seems to be rather 
more obliging to Mangalsingh for he has given him a certificate of good conduct. 
But none of them says of hearing any beating or any cries or complaints of 
beating. 

45· Mangalsingh, however, complained that when after the arrest they were 
orought on the crossing (Chauraha) in front of his house he was beaten by the 
police (para. 7). But none of these witnesses mentioned above says about any 
such beating being seen by them. Gangaram (C.W. t6) and Laxmanrao (C.W. u) 
did not see any suCh beating. In fact this witness actually came down on the 
road. Chandarsingh (C.W.. x5) says that no complaint of any beating. was made 
to him either by Mangalsingh or Govindsingh. 

4f It is Mangalsingh's own admission that neither he nor Govindsingh 
were beaten while they were being taken to the Police station (C.W. u-para. 8). 
So the point of beating during the way need not be laboured. l may state here, 
however, that the evidence of these persons who actually saw them being taken 
disproves the allegations made by the Jan Sangh and the Nagrik Samiti that 
they were beaten on the wav also. 

47 A suggestion was made by the Nagrik Samiti that Shri Ekbote was also 
present when Mangalsingh was arrested· and beaten. In fact quite contrary to 
what the Jan Sangh stated Nagrik Samiti charged Mr; Ekbote with his active 
complicity in the arrest and beating of Mangalsingh. Mangalsingh has stated 
that one other o~cer, appearing to be a superior officer of the Police, was present 
when M. L. Shnvastava and· the constables came to arrest him. The suggestion 
has its roots in the allegations made by the N agrik Samiti in their written state­
ments implicating Shri- Ekbote. Ordinarily Mangalsingh would know Shri Ekbote 
because to a notorious Gunda, the name and the face of an important police 
officer would not be unknown. But he does not remember his name. Shri 
Ekbote {A.W. 34) has pledged his oath to say that he was not at all present at the 
time of his arrest. The reason for implicating· him is, according to him the 
grudge t_hat these two leaders of the N agrik Samiti, viz., Shri Bhatnagar and 
Dr•. Hartra'!' Chaubey bear against him. He had started some criminal cases 
.agamst· Shn Bhatnaga~, Advocate and a great pressure was brought upon him 
to drop them. He satd that even a member of the Legislative Assembly Shri 
!'-falhotra app~oached him with this request. The son of Hariram Chaubey 
IS also deep!~ mvolved. He also approached him to save his son. It is, there­
for~, no~ unhkely .that .these two leaders found it a convenient method of impli· 
~tmg h'?J· _None of the witnesses present at the time when these two persons, 
vtz., Govmdsmgh and Mangalsingh were taken to the police after l'heir arrest, 
say, about the presence of Shri Ekbote. 

48. It is- true that Shri Ekbote was- moving in .the police jeep in the night 
as Gulabrao (A. W. g) -deposes but he too is definite that Shrl. Ekbote was. not 
present at the time of the arrest and he ,did not come to the police station also. 

49· However, when the formal memo of arrest (Ex. P), was made at 1 .30 
in that night. no injuries on !b.e body of the deceased were noticed. This fact 
is d_epose_d _by Bapulal (A. W. 3) and Piru (C. W: 17), panch w!tnesses. Simi­
}~~},< »~ m1m' »:t> tmmd <>n the bodv of Mangalsmgh also, ThiS was so when 
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their clothes were re~oved aS_ is done in Jama Talashi. This arrest memo 
bears the signature of the deceased arid it cannot be that it was manufactured 
afterw3.rds. 

50. Another place where beating is. alleged is the lock-up .. But Mangal­
sing'h himself stated that he was not beaten ';"hen he -was· :locked in· ·the lock-up 
with another prisoner (C.W. '22-para. 8): Noor Mohammad (A.W. ·15), was 
then already m that lock-up in which Govindsingh was lodged and he_ has 
stated that no police officer .beat or tortured Govindsingh during the night. 
Kalla (A. W. 16)· was the cell-mate with Mangalsingh' and he also says that 
Mangalsingh was also not beaten. Of the two, Mangalsingh was a greater 
criminal and if at all beating would be given it would be given to him. H 
Govindsingh were beaten that night then his cries would certainly have -been 
heard by Mangalsingh because that 'lock-up in which Govindsingh was lodged 
was bar~ly 7 o~ 8 cubits away fr'?m the cell, in which Mangalsingh was. But 
11_1angalsmgh d1d not hear any cnes (C. W. ••-'-'para g) .. Constable Ramavtar­
smgh was then on guard duty and he swears that no such beatirig was given. 
Kalla (A. W. 16) also did not hear any such beating. 

51. I have also examined Dhulji (C. W. 26), Shr,inivas (C. W. 28), Devji (C. 
W. 27), Ratanlal (C. W. 29), Babula! (C. W. 30), Shankarrao (C. W. 31), Ramesh· 
cbandra (C. W. 32), living in close proximity. to Jiwajiganj _Police Station. If 
there was any beating given to either Mangal o_r Govindsirigh _that night, cer­
tainly these people would have heard the cries. So there is no evidence of any 
beating in the Thana. 

52. The star witness Mangalsingh .. ori· whom the Nagrik Samiti banked so 
much, compelled by more· than one ba1lable \\'arrants of arrest to. appear and 
depose o1_1ly says of one ?eating and that too. at the time of arrest. About 
other beatings at other umes and at other places .such as the Chauraha or the 
way or the Thana, even this witnes~ say~ not a word. But :Uthough he_ say~ 
that he was beaten by. the pohce w1th klCkS and fists, the ]all Doctor T1wan 
(A. W. 33), did not find any marks of .injury on his body wfien he was examined 
by him in compliance of the ritual. to wh1ch ev_ery. offender-ent~ant t<;> the P!l 
is subjected. The relevant ·entry from th~ regtster of undez:-tnal pnsoners 1s 
Ex. •· So this gives a lie even to the ev1dence of Mangalsmgh that he was 
beaten in the night of 24th March 1963. 

53. However. there is still the _evide_nce of the broth~r and the m?-cl~ of 
the deceased which has to be exammed m thts connectwn. Raghuv1rsmgh 
(C. W. 12) is the brother a£ the d~ceased .. H_e stated _that in _them?"ning of 
•5th March .1!)63, Gaupatlal l'atel mform~d h1m that m the mght h1s i;'rother 
and Mangal were surrounded by the Pohce as they surround . the dacmts and 
beaten very severely. So beating .. thcv. took them to the Police Station. So 
Ganpatlal informed him and then went a-.yay; Ganpatlal (C . .W. 14)_ did-not see 
the actual beating ·and he heard of the mCJden t in the market place · from 
Chunnibai, Gangaram and oiher~. _ Both .these witnes!ies were examined by the 
Commission. What Chunnibai (C. W. 15) says gives a complete lie to· Gan­

. patlal'_s vers!on (C.W. 15-para. 4). <?~ngaram ·. (C.W. 16) also completely 
repudiates h1m. (para. last of his c;lepos!llon).. So the story of Ganpatlal does 
not seem to be true. -

. 54· To revert back to. the _evidence of the brother one ve~v , significant 
thmg that emerges from Jus .ev1dence ts that al_t)lough. he was m[ormed b 
Ganpatlal of the alleged beatin~ and arrest of Ius brother .and the brothc 1 y 
is alleged to have told him after his release .that he was tcrriblv be· t r t.'0 

baton, he did not care to examine the body by asking him to t k'
1 

en " .a a e out Ius 



dothes. He is a .Patwari ;J;nd is ,a Matricl.tlate. Such .an a5liault on l;lis •brother 
if .tr...e •slwuld .~di11arily provoke him to -!'lake <!;D ;immedi;l.te ,complaint to ,the 
Superior Officers of ~e polic~. 'But nothing like that s~ems ~o he don~. On 
the other hand on hts own evtdence .he appears to have ]USt tned to pactfy the 
de~eased .and engage •himself in his daily :chooes. ;He -d<i>CS n<>t ·"'l'l"' t!> have 
paid _.any seriot~s attention to -it. T,his piece ,of _-oonduct ,of Raghu~irsin~h is 
vecy significant in judgi!lg ;his .testimony. 

55· He stated that -after -G<>npatlal mtormeal him of the ,incident 1he -went 
to the Police Station to secure his brother's release. According_ to ;him, ·he was 
informed there that the Station Officer o0uld ,ppt be .distur.bed .in his -sleep .and 
'" he came back. This is all that the brother did that morning. 

!;6. _·But we .find· that (;anpadal ~k. .all the tr!>uble to go t0 seqwe ·the 
release of this boy on bail and this obligation was done .in sprte of the absence.-of 
any request from Raghuvirsingh (C. W. -t~-:para. 24). Th,is is rather u!lusual. 
A man would _not ordinarily pledge his .property .to secure the release of ,spme 
one not closely related to him and not ev.en of his cas>e .unless be was inlletested 
in him very deeply or was requested by some relation to do the favoq,r. Gan· 
patlal would S"f that the Sub· Inspector M. L. ,Shrivastava .told .him •that he had 
set the hoy free after taking his personal bend and that .if be desired ··he .could' 
sign the secur.lty bond. When the -boy was released lllreitdy, theTe .was .no 
necessity .for Ganpatlal .to .hypothecate b.is .property. .He .does tllOt seem to .he 
such a simple vill.ager. Jn the past .he -never saw .any such -incident of an 
arrested person being released before the Muchalka and tl;te .security bond wm:e 
taken (C.W. t4-para. 4)·. He was not under any influence of the Sub-Inspector. 
He did not .know him fr0m before '(C.W. 14-para . ..2). ;rherefore, it ,is absolutely 
false to say that he :would .append his signature ,to ~he .secur.ity ,bond {Ex. ••) at 
the mere asking of the Station Officer when. the .purpose of -the .bond had .been 
long 01rried out. This is ·highly ·improbable. The evidence of M. L. Shrivastava 
and Noor·Mohammad (A. W. 15), .a cell-mate of the deceased -e•tab!ishes Gan­
patlal's presence at a time when Govindsingh was .in the lock-~p. Jt is also 
tmportant to note that this ;witaess who met GovJndsingh later .that day. did not 
care to examine his body f!>r the injuries when the boy CQIIlplaiood ~o him that he 
was severely beaten -for which he c!>nsoled him (.par.as. (3) .and (g)]. The cond-Uct 
of Ganpatlal discredits him. 

57· Even so, the entire testimony of Raghuvirsingh shows clearlr that he is 
not a truthful witness. . He .has .been· denying .the .antecedents pf Mangal a.dose 
associate of his brother in spite of such over-whelming evidence. of his reputa­
tion and misdeeds. He has .been ·even denying the signatures of his brother 011 
the application for admission to Maharajwada High Schoolth<n\gh the hGy M'aS 

admittedly in that school and he himself signed it at .B·l\ as guardian. .Jt was 
only after great reluctance .that he admitted ~he signature of his decease-d brother 
at A·A. He has been also ,admitting and in the next breath denying his hrot1lCr's 
signature on another application [(Ex. M) paras-81 and 83]. 

58. He further stated that when in the I'IlDrtt-ing of the ~!jth March 1963, 
he reached Kothi Palace for his work .and also to secure the release of his 
brother on 'hail. he met Suh·Inspei::tor M. L. Shrivastava and be. tpld him 
voluntarily and it appears without his asking, that he had freed his bro~her 
because he was an innocent student and had not kept any record of hi., release. 
This. is simplv preposterous for a Police Officer. who had. a~ested ~he boy after 
makmg an arrest memo and had made .the reqmr.ed ~ntrtes m the Rojnamchas. 
w<>_uld not he so stupid as to enlarge the. boy .wttho~t necessary formalhies of 
hat!.. etc .. At. least this could not be pos~tble m ~ Ctty like Ujjain where the 
public mmd ts so very alert. But still thts Patwan says .SQ. 
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59: Anothet lie told by nhe- witne.s is his easy submitlsim•• to ohe wishes 
ol' tile Sub-Inspector ia an{edating. obte_ repor.o (Ex. Ji) which· according: to· rum 
was inbat signed on the _...,;:n: MaE<ili• 1963 and: nt>t c>rtl Jl'tilll\' Ma·ro~ 1'963• as- it 
purports to show. It is important to note that in the evening of 26th March 
.r~~!l'., the l'eaderS' suefil ~ Slll'ili> M'al\endra :S:hatnagat!, &. P. Bhargava,. Dr. 
Ha'r.rl\Il'r ehaui)Cy; M'aasingii= ~itll.i- and: se'llt!ra!l' c>thors had liai!ied "' st<M>Ill> <!Ver. 
tile &ath' of die, boy,. whill!' tlie' dead' blld~ lay ilien!' J!eady fur. thi! fume$>l 
!?~ession, . T~e ·. Nagrik S~ti was born: rhe~e. with_ tliese- lea?-et'S: . The}' 
J)ad evc:D' nommated' Dr. Harrram Cliaubey as· 1ts· convene!'.· 'Vlhs· 1\aaz ~­
ou~ h:om tlie· _evidc!nce of no less a•. mat'l_ than· Shri G. V. Naik, an Advota-te 
anrl' ·tJi.e President of !he. Jan.· Sangh (C. w: !)-'-p'ara: 16): . 'Fhis :committee 
hall al!iP e.xamined the.· body and' noted the injuries on' a paper. 'Fhe papl!t 
w.bk.h "lllf"al:s to have- Hsted the injM,ries il.as. b.een' eitll.er destl't>):ed· or corr' 
venieat;ly taken back as. the evtdence- of ari a'dvocate leaner Shri' K. P: Bllargava 
(C w.: 3). shows. Ii was riot. with the District Magistrate as he deposed 
(A-- W. 49):. One does. n~ know why· it w.as d.estr~·ed or kept ba~k· 

GD'. Wbemi this b111> aU h"Ppenecili an~ tnese Jea<re!IS' Jl'ai1 ·mttameo: the mob 
by proclaiming that the boy had received hundreds of wciundk · asc an'<>thei> 
leader Thakurlal Jethwani stated (C· W. 2-para, 2), and a big fury was let 
lbt>se' again:sf. ~1\'e police, i~.> is untliinlurble t'lnit · Raghnvirsingfu woW.tl be 
iiUbmiutirig -l'O' the wishes. oil the· Sub.I'Ilspocror who was: rhe main target <Jf . 
thi~ agit'«tion- into antted'atihg· suc?1 a·n imp-ortan~. d.otumant . as the. r.epon: 
(E". FY telatiflg. to tlie dea~h. of h-1~ ~wn• br?th~•- · .lll<I~- ver.sion: -that he-. was 
called ther.e: anw per.suad:ed Into dom!l' th1~ m the presenoe. oli his urrch! 
Alhhaysingh' cannot, therefOre, be 1\elieve.d. 

. . 61. Abhaysingh (C. W. 5) is the u!'cle of the boy. Though be lives in 
tJ'jjai'Ir and'. iir Nayapurit, &e ptetends ign'Orance about the. anteeedmHs of 
Mangat arid of his ~iation witll: tile deceased'. He' did noo Jtimself Sel; 
m:ore than ~ inj)lries· on the bod'y. Sub~Inspector Shrlv.astava had' prosecuted 
him. un(ier sec.tion 107, arid 1451. Ct. P" .. C., . when he was in. Ghatiya.. He 
is It Pa:tYiati. siiuoe l'cing and it is, fllerefoi:e~ dlffi.cult' to. believe that he would 
IW to) t.his Sub'lnspectot oli the '27t.h March 1963 aftet all this storm over (.1\e 

. dead: body, of his nepheW and- .w,ould silently_ observe .h!s oth.e~ nephew 
brotliex o( the' deceased <lntedatmg. a docum.ent (Ex.. F). 1n. relation. to. the 
faaum. ot the death. of. his brother. _ :e·atwanis. everywhere are intellige8 t 
people on whom rests a measure of tl:ie 5urden of revenue administtatiOn. 
Such stupidity as these two Patwaris feign and such simplicit}' ot submissive. 
JlCSI '18; tbeJI pr~tenr.l ill! foreign. to the class. to which they beleng. It appears 
ld~tJU! fi"o~ the· e,vi(ien<;<l· of. this Fatwari ir..elf t.hatJ Shni Mahendra Bhatnagar 
·Jtpptoadled Ragh.winmgh on the ~8th -Marchz r~63 (.para,, 30)· 'E'hough he 
and· Raghu"'i,.ingh both, deny the- birth. of- the Nagrik Samit-i- having. tahn 
pla<e_ on, the, otla. of the house G>f_ Raghuvi~singh. wher~ the· dead body lay the 
fa<zt 18'- prove<l by no. less. a. man than .. Shr•· G. V. N.a1k an. important public 
leadl!T. In, that background., .~he- visi~ of che _leaders, of . thi! Nagrik Samit.i 
a~ .th<> houS<l' of Raghuvirsingh. and, the meetmg: wtth, Abhaysingh· giveJ> a clue 
t~ _thtt above tendencies, ef these_- witnesses. as. disdosed in theiF e'ridence .. 

62. Therefore, in these circumstances no value c~ft Ire attaclied• 
evidence of Raghuvirsingh that his brother complained to him of b · ~' the 
tli~ Polioo> ·The wftnoss hat gone· back upon. his statement . . eatmg by 
the Stib-klspf'(Jtol' hi, EX: J .at severa"l· places. The· Sub-tns"""t re8ror~M by 

r-- Ol' hnva~nw~ 



16 

has no. bad relations with him or. his uncle as_ he admits (C. W. u-pa_ra. 6o). 
There 1~ no .reason for thiS officer, therefore, to re~orQ a. _St!ltemenL .. _wl~~~~. ~c 
did nor- :make. But there is reason -for Raghuvirsimrh to go back upon It. 

. 63. The next place of .. evidence r~qlliring CO!J.Sl\lt!ra~wn_is tne dyin(?; d~cl~_­
_rauon. of the boy. in Ex. D.. The uncle .lind tile .. llroth~r. have both. deme~ th1s 
letter to be in the handwriting of the deceased qr uiider his signature.. _But tile 
expert Shri Sarvate (A.W. 32) examined it and compared it with several st~nd~rd 
writings such as the answer books, .the applications· for admission. the apphcauon 
for return of certificate, ·etc.. (Ex. R. 5· M, L, K), ·which were sufficient for the 
c?mpariso'.' a'.'d his opinion is unequivocal to say that the writer of the compara­
uve matenaliS also the writer of Ex. D and the sig11ature on Ex. K, L and M are 
a~so of the same person. Even to the naked eye would appear a strik.ing simila: 
rny b_etween the disputed and t'he proved sig11atures and also thevarious letters 
used m Ex. D and the standard material. It may be recalled here that although 
Ab_h~ysingh. real uncle of the deceased pretended. being conversant with the 
wntmg of the deceased he denied Ex. D to be in his 'handwriting. The brother 
Raghnvirsingh admitted that the sig11atnres at A-A in Ex. I were of his brother 
o_nly to t~rn · back upon this admission in the next breath. He admitted his 
Stgllature m Ex. M. 

64. The deceased for his Matriculation ·Examination in which he was 
appearing at the time of his death was given the Roll No; 4434 (Ex. K) and the 
answer-books Ex. Rt to R6 produced by Shri Mumtazuddin (A.W. ·4), Secretary 
?f the Board bear this Roll No. So there can be no doubt .that Ex. R5 which 
lS ~s.ed as the main material for comparispn of writings is of the deceased in his 
~lt~fig. The opinion of the expert (Ex. ·D. 7) used as a g11ide confirms my 
findmg that Ex. D is in the handwriting of the deceased and bears his sig11ature. 

. 65 .. The panch Jogendrasingh (A.W. 1) quite friendly with tne htw~i 
Raghuvtrsingh and who went to his house as soon as he·came to know of"hts 
brother's death swears tb.at" this letter was found near the place ·where the boy 
was found hanging when he and· the Sub-Inspector Shrivastava and· Raghuvir 
Singh went into that room. The fact is. also mentioned in the inquest report 
Ex. C which is sig11ed by Raghuvirsingh and Abhaysingh also and that too 
withotlt any protest. Therefore~ their evidence in the commission that the 
!etter was at the relevant time in the hand of the Sub-Inspector and he planted 
tt on the book cannot be accepted (See C. W. 5-para. 5). If such was the case 
they would never have put their sig11atures on this inquest-report. These_ two 
are simply lying. 

66. This dying declaration "does not make any a~leg~tions. of beating or 
torture or harassment by the police. The boy was qmte mtelhgent. He· had 
once faced a prosecution with his associate Mangal. Therefore, if in truth he 
was beaten, tortured or harassed by the po~ice. he would not have failed to 
mention it in it. For after his death the pohce would not have him for further 
harassment and by his letter, on accolln~ of the sanctity attaching to the last 
expression of a dying man, the police, hts torturers, would be liable to black­
mail which they would find difficult to counteract_. Therefore,- the absence· of 
3!'Y _such allegation in this document. th~ la~t wrttten by the deceased is very 
81SI_l•ficant. It gives a lie to the vicious agttatmn launched by the Nagrik Samiti 
as tf on his dead body. 

67 · In the inquest report · (Ex. C) also there is a clear mention of the 
absence of any other injuries on the body of the deceased except the ligatUt'e. 
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And ibis is subscribed by the brother and the uncle. If what is stated in it were 
not true~ then these two Patwaris would ilot ordinarily put their-sigrlatures on 
it. 

68. In the autopsy made by Dr. -Bobra (A.W. a) also h~ ~id not nnd any 
injuries except the ligature. A charge was made. by Raghuvrrsmgh and Abhay 
Singh that the postmortem examination of the boy's body was got made by the 
Sub-Inspector through this doctor with unusual haste suggesting thereby that 
what the doctor did was only in name an autopsy. But this wild suggestion is 
countered by the oath of the Doctor himself. a responsible officer. Therefore, if 

· injuries other than the ligature caused by suicidal hanging did exist, they would 
have been found recorded ·in the postmortem. report (Ex. o). This is also a 
circumstance discrediting the story of "hundreds of wounds", a bogey raised by 
the leaders of the Nagrik Samiti before that mob in front of the 'house of the 
deceased while the body lay there awaiting final disposal, consignment to the 
flames on the banks of the Holy Kshipra. 

6g. But before this post-mortem report ca~e. news of t~~ death of -~e boy 
spread and it reached as tt seem~ people who w1th_out exerciSing the cau_uon of 
verifying the ~ruth-of the allegauon that the ~?Y d1ed on account of beatmgs by 
the po.lice as 1t would behove a respons1ble c1t1zen, collected at the house of the 
deceased. Shti K. P. Bhargava (C.W. 3) an Advocate of the City deposed .that 
a crowd of a thousand or so came to his house and took him there. He readily 
consented because he claims to be a political worker of that locality . who has 
fought many an election to the Municipal Committee from it. He at first declin· 
ed. though under oath to give the names of those persons who called him on· the 
pretext that if their names were disclosed the Police would harass them. But on 
a clear assurance from the Commission that it will not be permitted to be so, he 
gave the names of some though reluctantly. I am not to comment on this conduct 
of his. But the fact is that he did go there leading this crowd without taking 
care as a. responsible man to ascertain the truth. It was not a simple going 
beca~s~ · m the way as thes~ people pa~sed they raised slogans alleging police 
atroctues as the cause of boys death. HIS own clerk exhorted people to close the 
•ho_ps and makoe a stnke (A.W. 41-para. 44) ... The fact was recorded in the 
Ro]n~mcha (Ex. XS No. 1336•. dated a6-3;63). I want to stress this point because 
all th1s. ~35 done before reachmg the place where the boy's bOdy lay and without 
ascertammg the truth; 

70. Other people also collected .. They included Shri Mahendra Bhatnagat, 
· A:dvo~te, Mansmgh Rahi, Dr. I:Iariram Chaubey and others. They too raised 

the ~nes that the boy h:'d re~e1ved hundreds of. inj).lries as a result-_of police 
beaung. I am not to mvest1gate tl_>e ~auses why these people raised this 
apparently false_ cry alt_hough a suggestwn 1s made in the evidence of Shri Ekbote 
(C.W. 34) tha_t It was JUst exploited to blackmail the police who were about to 
prosecute Shr! Bhatnagar for chea~mg a man by receiving from him about 100 
rupees or so m t~e name of a pollee officer and for assaulting a public servant. 
and Dr. Chaubey s sons. for som~ other offences, which they fruitlessly tried to 
get dropped through mtervenuon of others. These reports are on record 
(~· ~ 1 3• 1 4~1'1 5•. t6, '7): Circle Inspector Wakde (A.W. gg) has deposed that 
t e r~ evanllit •a':les relatmg to the offences against Shri Bhatnagar are with ... 
supenor o cers m Bhopal · h th 1 th "'e 
him Be that what. Wit e resu_t at the casesare not started against 

· 'b'l .. . 11 may, the fact remams that _the leaders did not take am 
responst 1 e vtew of the Situation. ore 
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1'· When the inob ~ot excited by the utterance~ of thes~ leade~s. the Col· 
lector· Shri Verma (A.W. 49) and the Superintendent, Pc;>liCe_ Shn Dharkar 
(A.W. 44) came to the spot. Shri Verma suggested_a re-exammatton of the body 
by the Civil Surgeon and one Doctor to be nommated by these leaders. !"'· 
Kelkar was the man. He was called and he and the Civil Surgeon Dr. Mttra 
summoned for the purpose examined the .body, according to Dr. ~itra, under 
strong light. They found besides the ligature a contusion over the nght _scapular 
region. transversely placed 2" x t" parallel margin and another contuston over 
the right popliteal region in its lower part, •t'' x :!" with margin regular and 
straight. The injuries were recorded in the presence of the leaders who watche~ 
the examination done after careful wash of the body then smeared with verm•· 
lion in preparation for the funeral. It showed only these two marks although 
the leaders were crying that there were hundreds (Ex. A). 

Jz. Dr. Kelkar has no experience of post-mortem examinatio~. But Dr. 
Mitra is an experienced man in that branch, He to<> says that the skin was not 
cut to definitely determine whether the injury was antemortem or post-mortem. 
There is no sure evidence of Dr. Kelkar to disprove the suggestion that they were 
simply postmortem staining. 

73· Dr. Mitra is definite that all the three injuries, i.e., the ligature-and 
the!<' two contusions were of the same duration. At its worst it would show 
that these two injuries if they are held t<> be antemortem were inflicted on the 
boy on the 26th March 1963 when he hanged himself cansing the ligature mark. 
He was then certainly not in police custody 1\.aving been released on the previous 
day. -:.:here is absolutely no suggestion of any type that the boy was beaten by 
the pohce on the 26th March 1963. The brother might have as well beaten him 
with a cane to chastise him for his conduct in associating with Mangal whidl 
again lodged him in police i:ustody and brought disgrace to alL 

74· On the point of harassment. Raghuvirsingh said that in the afternooo 
of 26th March. •963 he saw two constables standing iR front of the otla of his 
house suggesting thereby that they had come to call Govindsingh to the Station 
:House. He also slated that earlier that day at about 10 or 1<>.30 when he was 
preparing to come to the Kothi for his official work,· the deceased Govindsingh 
said to him that he had to go to the police ·statiO!' because he was called there 
(paras. 8 and 11 ). This is stated to show that the boy was harassed by the police; 
But the evidence of Durgashankar (A.W. 46), Head Constable, Moharrir attached 
to this station house proves that at no time on either of the days a5th or 
26th <>f March 1963, was any constable oent to call this boy. The relevant Sanas 
are produced 1X> support him. Bheroprashad (A.W. 47) a :Head Constahl~ left 
the Police station at 1.50 a.m. on a6·3·63 for patrol duty and he h!lll Sworn that 
he did ROt go to _call Govin~ingh. On the pr~vious day ~lso he was on patrol 
duty from 1 t.ga 111 the morrung till 5·35 p.m. m the evenmg and he bas fli'Orn 
thai. ~ ~id nQt go to call Govindsingh. No direction to call him was given and 
there 1S no ment10n of any such direction in the Rojnamcha. 

75- When Govindsingh was already released. on bail. there should have 
been no point in requ.iriug his presence in the ~Thana again. Mangalsingh was 
them behind the bars, his bail application bemg already refused on the 15th 
March 1963. The mischief of a very serious natu~e could he expected from him 
and BOt from this boy who w .. according to the evtdence adduced just a follower. 
So there io no eviden£e ·to show that Govindsin~h. was called or fi-equently pe .. 
tered by the Police after his release. It is surpnsmg that Raghuvirsingh would 
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make no enquiries from these constables When he saw them standing infront of 
his own hguse. He does not ~now their names. 

76. Raghuvirsingh does not appear t'O be a witness of truth and. thetefm~, 
his evidence cannot be believed to say that the boy was harassed by the Police. 
The evidence of Police constables adduced by the authorities discussed above 
disproves the suggestion that the boy was called to the police eithet on 25th or 
26th of March 1963 after his release on bail. 

77· It will thus ~e seen t!J.at the charge that the Police beat the decea~ed 
very severely at the ttme of hts arrest or when he was marched to the Pohce 
station or at the Police station or that he was harassed: is baseless. It has. no 
foundation in truth. . The charge was levelled as it appears now distinctly. by 
interested persons using inter alia RaghuvirSingh and· Abhaysingh as their. tools 
just to malign the police for their own ends. 

78. It is also to be observed that Kaghuvirsingh deposed ·that Sub-Inspector 
M. L Shrivastava when he met him in the Kothi told· him that he had given a 
sound warning to his brother and let him off without any documents from him. 
On the face of it this is highly improbable as I have shown above .. Mter all this 
officer would have_ no interest in the boy and would not administer any warning 
utt one wtio was for all purposes incorrigible and whose-associations with Mangal 
Singh had been too deep and strong to be seveted so span. Law would have 
taken its own coarse and. therefore, there. would be no occasion or necessity f.or 
such a gratuitous advice. 

·79· So considering all the evidence adduced b~ me authoritits and col­
lected by the Commission, one comes to the conclusion that is irresistible in 
the circumstances that. the allegations made by these public agitators regard• 
ing police beating, torture or harassment as the cause of the boy'•· suicide are 
absolutely false. 

So. I took care to examine most of the wibiesses named· hy Shri Naik in 
the list .. No list of witnesses was filed IJy the Nagrik Samiti. The· witnesses 
named ·by the Nagrik S_amiti include Advocate Shri · K. · P._ Bhargava, · and 
Shri Eklakh·Hi.t,ain.- Shri. Eklak:h-I:Iusain has_ admitted with candidness 
that no relation of the . deceased complained to hini about' the death ·of 
Govindsingh (C. w .. 8-para. 4) .. Shri Ramprakash· Malhotra and Shri Hari 
Moreshwar Joshi (C .w. 7> both. members of the Legislative Assembly were 
not told any thing bv any near relati!>n of the deceased about the causes of his 
death. Even the evidence of Shri K. P. Bhargava is silent on the point 
although he did not hesitate to. charge the police, in the meeting addressed bv 
him .in front of the house that evening. while !'he dead body ·Jay awaiting funeral, 
that .the boy committed suicide soon after release from Police custody because 
the Police had merciiessly beaten him (C. W. 3....:.para. 6). S'hri Naik 
hazarded the charge in the written statement filed by him onlv on the basiM 
of informat!on. supnlied 'bv Shris K. P . .Bhargava, _Mahendra Bhatna11;ar 
Eklakb Husan~. ·_Dr. Kelkar. Thakurlal .Jethwani and Ma.ngalsingh without' 
it appears, venfymg the truth thereof. 

St. It is titus rJear that the- charJ[e that the Police beat this b 
or harasse~ him •?~- therefore, on account of the fear of furthe~ b 0 Y. _seve~rely 
boy. co"!mttted su-t~tde has no substance. My answer. th r eatm~s the 
pomt ratsed above lS an emnbatic No. · erecore, to the first 
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Sa. Point No. 2.~With the above finding alone the .task of the Com­
mission does not come to an end. In terms of the reference it has still to 
enquire into the 'causes of the death of Govindsingh. The task is not an 
easy one for it is very very difficult . to investigate about the workings of the 
mind of the deceased. The Commission in this situation cannot give a defi­
nite finding on this point. It can at the. best indicate onlv the probable 
causes with some degree of certainty of course. 

83, The deceased belonged to a family of Rajputs originally residing 
in Kaluheda a village about 12 miles distant from Ujjain. But_ the boy's 
fathet came over to Ujjain where he worked as a Patwari. After his death 
which took place about ·4 or ·5 years back, the responsibility of bringing up 
this boy fell on the shoulders of his brother Raghuvirsingh. _ But the family 
had its roots in Kaluheda and the bov visited that place very often. Shivnath­
singh, the panch of Gram Panchayat, ·Kaluheda and a close relation of the boy 
and also his neighbour in Ujjain .testifies that the boy was very hot by 
temparament thou~h silent. 'This is ·what his brother also says. ·Pratap­
singh (A. W. 36) knew him well because of his interest in watching Football 
matches and he says that the deceased was a hot. -tempered boy. 

~4· But unfortunately. the boy came into contact with Mnagalsingh who 
had •t appears a fancy for teen-agers.. The fact is though the brother and 
the uncle may deny it that his associations with Mangalsingh were too thick 
to be . e~silv broken. Pratapsingh knew of this association. N aturaUy 
Raghuvusmgh would also know of it when as a result of this association the 
b?Y had to face a criminal charge in 1961. He even warned him not to k.eep 
hiS company. (C. W. u-para. 39). But in spite of this as the evidence dis­
cussed above shows the boy alwavs kept company with Mangalsingh and 
they were almost inseparable. That accounts for the fact that the bov slept 
i~ the night of the 24th March 1963 at the house of Mane;alsingh. Mter all 
hlS house was not far awav and when he had to prepare for his examination 
we would naturally expect that he would come bark to his ~ouse _and .sleep 
till the morning so that he mav be fresh to begin his studies. This .w~s ii:Ot 
the solitary Occasion for the bov to steen there as Olaunnibai (C. W. 1 ~) · a 
neio-hbour of Mangal r!eoosed. Mangal is a bachelor and bis old mother ·who 
lived for sometime with him is alc;;o now rrone .. In these rircurllstances the fact 
of -the association of this bov with Mant!al is of soroe imnortance_in analvsingo 
or rather in attempting to analvse the probable causes of his suicide. 

8_'). The bov had failed in· the previous year's examination and. in the 
earlier classes also he took time to· get through. This shows that the bov was 
not paying- any serious attention to his studies and was wasting not onlv his 
time hut also the precions little earnings of his brother spent on his education 
and up-bringing. 

Rli. Association of a member of the tamuv Wl!n a Known bad character in 
the context of the known fancv of the latter for teen-agers is bound to reflect 
upon the renut<1t\on of the familv ac;; a whole and would n':ltnrallv cause 1·esent· 
n;ent ~mon!!'lt them. Unwittine:ly, Rae;huvirsingh has admitted that he did not 
ltke _hiS brother's association with Mane:alsine:h 4nd thoug-h he does not sav. so 
spec.ficallv, one can read in his deposition (para. 39) that he must .have even 
!coldcd 'h•m for it. After all that would be the natural reaction of a man wi)o 
15 compelled to defend a brother fallen in trouble became of bad compam· 
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. . . 1.f h d . a! does not bear ·the cherised ·Adolescence 1s a penod tn 1 e w en a v1ce ways . · . . d 

fruit of correction. It, therefore, compels the use of rebuke to that en · 

87. Advice and persuasion appear to have failed to helP. wean this boy 
from the company of Mangalsingh. For even after the first advice. when he was 
put to tro~ble in Ig6I and had to face.a trial along with.Mangalsmgh! the boy 
continued.to be in his company. Therefore, when he brought. ab~ut a. second 
misfortune upon him of his arrest that night during the examm~tt_on hke anv 
sensible guardian anxious for the welfare of 'his ward, Raghuvirsmgh_ would 
not but have scolded and even beaten him. He was not· only a guardian but 
also a reaLdder brother. He has in his statement to the police (Ex. J) clea.,rlv 
admitted: - "~ li~ '~'ni oi'rf<Rfu~ IOT m. <~". · ~ <U 'ilii -r'l ~m:." 
Of course he denies having done so or even the fact of· making s~ch a state­
ment. But his denial cannot be accepted when in all l?robability_-th!S w~nld be 
the natural act of a brother guardian. The statement. 1s natural tn the: c1rcums~ 
tances. 

as .. The deceased was well aware of the fact that his uncle and brother .. as 
would be natural with them, resented his association with.:Mangalsingh. ·.He 
conveyed this to.Pratapsingh (C. W. g6), and also .to Noormohammad. (A. W._ IS) 
with whom he was forced to spend the night in that cell in the pollee ~tatwn. 
The brother did not fail to express his {esentment more than once. For accord­
ing to. Ra!fisingh (A. W. 26~ about a month before his death, R":ghu~irsingh 
rebuked him whe'! he saw him and Mangal together drinking tea m his hotel. 
once in the presence of Haji lbrahimkhan (A. W. 27) also the boy was rebuked 
bv his brother for his evil company. This would be natural and. therefore, there 
is' no reason to disbelieve these witnesses. 

Sg. Govindsingh him~elf was as it appears from the testimony ot u~lall' 
singh (A. W. 34) fed up With the company of Mangalsingh, and expressed It to 
the witness. But he was probably afraid to leave the company of his bully­
friend who threatened him with dire consequences if he parted. ·The bov was 
thus in a dilemma. It may, therefore. be that when faced with the scoldings and 
rebukes of his brother and other relations on the one .hand and the threat of 
Mangalsingh· on the other, this inexperienced youth found death to be the 
only ~ay _out of his pr~dicament. He w:'s also then apprehending failure in_ the 
examtnatlon on_ce agatn as he communicated it to Pratapsingh a day prev1ous 
to the day on which he died. 

!JO. The ment~l co!'dition of a yo~mg boy IS years old in such a _situ~tion 
as this can well be tmagmed. On all sides he faced frustration and bemg stlent 
by nature. he cou!d not give an outlet to his feelings: Therefore, it .is not im­
probable m the Circumstances that the boy put an end fo his life on account of 
the above rea~m~s. ~n the. material that was produced and that was obtained 
by the Comm!sston Itself thiS seems to be a probable cause of his death in the 
circ~mstances m which it. took place and not the beatings or harassment hv the 
poltce or the fear thereof. Mv answer. therefore. t-o point .No. 2 is that it mav 
be so in all probabilitv. 

'I~· Findings.- In view. of the reasons recorded in the foregoing . 
graphs· l hold dlat the cause of death of Govindsin h son. of Bh" ?<tta 
Chandravat of Ujjain is otherwise than beating or harassm~nt bv the 1JO!" tmstngh 
thereof. It appears that a sense of frustration camed h th . tee or feat 
brother and uncle on account of his association w"th .;{ e resentment n[his 
with· which Man gal intended to keep his hold 0 I h. ' angal anrl the tenacity 
mind very much .. The apprehension of failure inn th~m wer_e vc;x.ing th~ hw's 

examtnat\On ex.erri>ed it 
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tunher. Ana ·Jne tmmemate cause for such a drastic step appears to have 
been provided ·~y"the'·sroldings and beatings ·bJ; his· brother on· his return from 
the police custody. An indication of it is also to be found in the last letter 
(Ex. ·Dj; of the ,deceased ·:in· .which he expresses his solicitude for members of 
h;s f~ID.;ir•; 

::~-~#_(,;st.t~<IIT '1>1: <W ~ Wif ~ 'l'ffi<'!T'li'T fi!;€1 lf'FT< ~"l'ai.<A><'I'I'Ii ~<ft ;;rt~.'' 
Perhaps r.q~'IJOviJioug.&,tthaion'his death the police would question his brother 
and· may even t!:mible him 'if they carne to know that because of his scoldings and 
be.atin2. _he committed suicide4 

92. General.~A complaint was made before ine bv AbhaysiilKh that he 
wa& ·. intimidared' ,:by' Slui. Balbirsingh. ·Deputy Superintende'!t of· Police into 
giviog'evidejjce::faVOI.mlible 10 the PoliCe. Similar charge was made by him and 
Raghuvirsingh against Sub-Inspector M. L. Shrivastava. Both these officers 
have come and deposed to rebut the accusation. Balbirsingh admitted that 
Abhaysingh came to him but he denies having .given any threat to him. It 
must ·be said· that••il'l· the circumstances then· obtaining Shri :Balbirsingh should 
have aV?ided meeting·Abhaysingh who could be an important witness at his 
house and ·should im"t •have :talked about any matter how-so-ever remotely con­
nected with-·the 'enQulrv, 

93, But -for .. the, wide charge that Police intimidated witnesses there is no 
evidence. .Witness-, after- witness examined by -the ·Commission has sworn that 
no pressure uf, ahy :kind was used against him by the Pollee. I have no reason 
to disbelieve their oath. Some of the witnesses, however, complained of intimi­
dation, etc:, by Mangalsingh and others (Chunnibai, C. W. 15 and Sherkhan, A. 
W. ~o). · This should not happen, when a public inquiry is in progress. 

94· Another gtievance was made of the presence of a _large ~umber of 
potice officers formerly posted in Jiwajiganj Thana and acquamted With people 
there during the· time of the progress of. the com·mission. . Shri Dharkar (A. W. 
41). stated that it· was because their help was considered neces~ary t<? collect mat~er 
for the cr.osg..examination :of witnesses Of the other party restdmg In that Iocnhty 
and ·some of them were ·even considered necessary to be examined as witnesses. 
While there could be no objection. to seeking all such help from the police 
officers in a better position to supply material required, their postings in 
Ujjain at the time .of the ocommission may not be con;sid,-e~ very appropriate 
It is alwavs necessary rhar no circumstances should eXISt :Whtch may create the 
,\ighte:st doubt about the workings of the concerned parties at ·the time of the 
Commission. There is,. howevf':r, no evidence to show that they influeilCed or 
tried. to influence w.iote~ses. 

95· A large contingent of Police was admitte.dly 'fykept !n the Jiwajigani 
Police station. The best judge of the situation to l~tstt thett presence would 
he the Superintendent of Polke. He stated that th1s was necessary in view of 
the then pn-vailin~ .. atrnosphere created before the Commission was a:ppointed 
and dllTiitg iu work. : This Police Station controls a large .·-.rea ·and it i~ 
admittedlv "early 3' to 4o miles awav from t~e Police lines. · ~en· feelinJ(S ate 
hi~h. the sli~hte.r provocation m<ty resu\t tn breach of pubhc peace. There· 
fore, there should he no ""ception takien to the prese~ce of a large number of 
policmen there in the interest of security and pubhc peace, when· the local 
staff·sta.tioned: there was not adequate to· meet such a contingency. 
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g6. General.-The Commission is constrained to say here. a few worda 
about the circumstances in which it had to work in comnletir>g this enquuy. 
From the very begining, the Nagrik Samiti gavP. au inkling of what subse­
q ue.ntly transpired. Their prominent spokesmer_, vtz.7 Shri .Bbatnagar and 
Shn K.. P. Bhargava who were also their Advocates deliberately adopted a 
very insulting attitude towards the Commission and behaved in .. manner 
um~orthy of citizens who also happen to be members of the honouraOJe pro­
femon of Advocates. In parttcular. i>hn Bhatnagar tran,gressed the limtts 
of decent behaviour. 

97· Subsequent to that they held public meeJmgs almost Cl,ali¥ m 111c 
heart. of the dty where they criticised not only th( Commtsston but -also the­
member comprising -it. Personal aspersions were made_ against -me- criticizing 
my judicial capacity also. This went on {or severaLd.ays,. Thr.eats of per,_ 
sonal. violence to me were also given. All this ~pp~"ars rn .haye ~been .. a· 
deliberate attempt to bring: about a situation in which I should have my8elf 
resigned from the Commission. It is dley, whq it appears made a demand for 
a judicial probe. . When it was conceded they came with a demand for the 
appointment of an Honourable Judge of the High Court as the Member of 
the Commission.· This 'Was not conceded. So they left the Commission on 
a very insignificant issue of venue only to agitate wi\dlv in _the nublic. 

98. One of their meetings was addressed by Shri Chandra Pratap Tiwari, 
a Member of the State Legislature and alleged to_ be once a leader or deputy 

· leader of the Socialist opposition in the House. Earlier he had begged 
permission of the Commission then sitting in private to watch the proceedings 
and it was given. But he rewarded the indulgance shown by the Commission 
by openly in a public meeting inciting the masses to arrest me and to forcibly 
remove the records of the proceedings from my custody. Not only that the 
learned Advocate General an integral constituent of the Government and the 
aged and distinguished member of the ~ega! professi?n was also not spared. 
A ridiculous threat of stoppage of his rettrement- pension was held out to him, 
if he persisted in responding to the invitation of th~ Commission to assist it 

-by his counseL ' The local daily pa!>ers and t_he pohce reports kept with the 
record make a sorry exhibition of' these anttcs of these leaders (?l of the 
people. 

99· Much has come in the evidence -of the police officers which throw• 
a great light on the causes which may have led these leaders of the Nagrik 
Samiti to malign the police and then the Commission when it did not yield 
to their pressure tactics and their subsequent behaviour. I do not think it 
necessary to catalogue them here. I expected good behaviour. 

100. The Commission is not a court and, therefore, the Contempt of 
Courts Act does not apply to it. It would certainly be a ve.ry unfair procedure 
~or the Commission to lodge a complaint ~ve':Y time that it is mal-treated or 
msulted. It would, therefore. he in pubhc mterest for the Government to 
do something in the matter and further to seek SO!De legislative measure tC' 
grant protection against such things to a Commission appointed under th 
Co:; mi~s!on of Inquiry Act, 191\•· The Government may also consider th~ 
destrabiltty of making it verv clear t\) all concerned before appointing such 
commission t~at in cases of misbeh~vi?ur _before it the Commissio,; shall 
cease to functwn and no further puhhc tnqUiry would then-be mnceded_ · In 



all such matters "public feelings run high and if t.liere is no adcq untc measure 
for keeping restraints ... on expressions .made before it, judicial officers called 
upon to act on such commissions· will find it a difficult duty to discharge; · · 

.,_.. ·:,· ___ ' -, \ 

· "tot> Tl]anks:'"--.rn the end I would like to place· on record my apprecia· 
tioit of the Press who· ail along took a very objective view and reported the 
matter ··aboJ.!f the' commission in a very fair manner. The general public of 
Ujjain also· deserves my· compliments for the remarkable restraint that they 
observed in spite of attempts at incitement. My thanks' are· also due to the 
learned Advocate General who readily obliged me with his valuable advice 
whenever requested. Shris Chitale and Balwantsingh Johar who represented 
the' Authorities lent all· their co-operation to me for· which I am deeply be' 
ho'den. · · The District Authorities who readily plaeed · all relevant material 
arid made:· -~ a~3ng~ents at the venue including those of security in those 
troubled days must alSo deserve my thanks. - . ,_ - . . ~ .. - . 

,/ . 
S. V. H. PAGARE. 

,.. ' 

B~ted thi 2 ist August. 1963-Sravana 30, 1885. 
Commi<sion of Inq.uiry,. 

· Ujjain (M: P.);' 


